
Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 

Date/Time:  Tuesday, January 22, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   

Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 

   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 

Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 

Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 

Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley  

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 

(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 

the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 

hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  

 Stoughton Wellness Coalition Presentation  

 

2. Minutes and Reports: 

Finance Committee (12/11/18); Rivers and Trails Task Force (11/5/18); Landmarks (12/13/2018); 

RDA (12/12/18/); Planning Commission (12/10/18); Utilities (11/27/18, 1/7/19)  

 

 

3. Public Comment Period:  

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. January 8, 2019 Council Minutes 

B. R-10-2019- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 

Licenses  

C. Stoughton Utilities November and December Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities 

October and November 2018 Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities October and November 

2018 Statistical Report  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. O-1-2019-Amending Ordinance Section 2-376 of the Stoughton Municipal Administration 

Ordinance (Plan Commission approved 4-0 on December 10, 2018)   SECOND READING 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

6. R-11-2019- Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Jim Killian to the Rivers & Trails 

Task Force, pursuant to 2-127 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 

 

 

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 

  

 

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us


7. O-2-2019- Amending Zoning Code Section 78-206 (8) (y), Keeping of Chickens, of the 

Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019) 

         FIRST READING 

 

8. O-3-2019-Amending Section 6-2(b), Keeping of Animals, of the Stoughton Municipal 

Code (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)  FIRST READING  

 

9. O-4-2019- Amending Zoning Code Section 78-916(2) (o), Zoning Administrator, of the 

Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)  

         FIRST READING  
 

10. O-5-2019- Repealing Zoning Code Section 78-518 of the Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning 

approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)      FIRST READING 

 

11. O-6-2019-Repealing Section 10-34 (b) Electrical Contractors License (Planning 

approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)      FIRST READING  

 

12. R-12-2019- Authorizing and Directing the proper City official(s) to amend the Planning 

Department Fee Schedule Effective February 1, 2019 (Planning Commission approved 6-

0 on January 14, 2019) 

 

13. R-13-2019- Authorizing and directing the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority to  

Undertake Planning Activities relating to the Central Business District (RDA approved 6-

0)  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 

aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 

Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  

 





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, January 22, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Stoughton Wellness Coalition Presentation  


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


Finance Committee (12/11/18); Rivers and Trails Task Force (11/5/18); Landmarks (12/13/2018); 


RDA (12/12/18/); Planning Commission (12/10/18); Utilities (11/27/18, 1/7/19)  


 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


 


A. January 8, 2019 Council Minutes 


B. R-10-2019- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 


Licenses  


C. Stoughton Utilities November and December Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities 


October and November 2018 Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities October and November 


2018 Statistical Report  


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-1-2019-Amending Ordinance Section 2-376 of the Stoughton Municipal Administration 


Ordinance (Plan Commission approved 4-0 on December 10, 2018)   SECOND READING 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


6. R-11-2019- Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Jim Killian to the Rivers & Trails 


Task Force, pursuant to 2-127 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us





7. O-2-2019- Amending Zoning Code Section 78-206 (8) (y), Keeping of Chickens, of the 


Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019) 


         FIRST READING 


 


8. O-3-2019-Amending Section 6-2(b), Keeping of Animals, of the Stoughton Municipal 


Code (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)  FIRST READING  


 


9. O-4-2019- Amending Zoning Code Section 78-916(2) (o), Zoning Administrator, of the 


Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning Commission approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)  


         FIRST READING  
 


10. O-5-2019- Repealing Zoning Code Section 78-518 of the Stoughton Municipal Code (Planning 


approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)      FIRST READING 


 


11. O-6-2019-Repealing Section 10-34 (b) Electrical Contractors License (Planning 


approved 6-0 on January 14, 2019)      FIRST READING  


 


12. R-12-2019- Authorizing and Directing the proper City official(s) to amend the Planning 


Department Fee Schedule Effective February 1, 2019 (Planning Commission approved 6-


0 on January 14, 2019) 


 


13. R-13-2019- Authorizing and directing the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority to  


Undertake Planning Activities relating to the Central Business District (RDA approved 6-


0)  


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Tom Majewski  


 








CITY OF STOUGHTON FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 


DECEMBER 11, 2018 @ 6:00 PM 


COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 321 S FOURTH STREET, STOUGHTON, WI  


 


Present: 


Duranczyk, O’Connnor, Jenson, Johnson and Mayor Swadley 


 


Absent and Excused  


None 


 


Others Present 


Alder Boersma, Clerk Licht, Finance Director Friedl  


 


Call to Order 


Duranczyk called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


 


Communications 


Friedl said the auditors started preliminary audit work this week.  


 


Reports: the following report was entered into the record.  


 Contingency Report 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


Approval of the November 27, 2018 Finance Committee Minutes 


Motion by Jenson, second by Johnson to approve the November 27, 2018 Finance Committee 


minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding recommended revisions to the Building 


Maintenance Fund Policy. 


Duranczyk said that the fund should be rounded up to $140,000 and increase the amount with 


inflation. She added that the excess could be transferred to the general fund. Friedl said that 


the City does not increase the rental amounts with inflation.  


 


The committee agreed that they did not want a cap on the fund balance as of now. They added 


that the policy and the funding levels should be reviewed yearly during the budgeting process.  


 


The committee agreed that the McFarland State Bank Building should be added to the 


maintenance fund.  


 


The committee directed Director Friedl to make the changes to the policy and bring it back to 


council during the first week of January.  







Discussion and possible action regarding formally adopting the WisDOT’s procurement 


and contract administration manual and vehicle disposition guidelines as they relate to 


Stoughton Transit. 


Motion by O’Connor, second by Duranczyk to recommend that council approve. Motion carried 


5-0. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding recovery of unlawful tax recovery request.  


The committee directed staff to have the attorney look at the request and provide feedback.  


  


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
Debt Management Policy revisions 


Review of financial reports and fund balances in the Library, Senior Center, and Food Pantry 


Funds 


 


Adjournment: 


Motion by O’Connor, second by Duranczyk to adjourn at 6:46 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 







River and Trails Task Force meeting- Monday, November 5, 2018 
 
Present:  Franklin Griese, Council person Phil Caravello, Sandra Black, Jim Wilcox, Jon Lewis, Recreation 
Director Dan Glynn, David Sharpe, Bob Diebel, Larry Liebmann, Nancy Hagen  
 
Motion by Phil seconded by Sandra to approve the September 10, 2018 minutes. Carried 
 
Communications: 
1.  Dan reports that the grant for the whitewater park was denied by the DNR.  More engineering work 
will be needed.  Dan will reapply for grant next year.  Phase 1: Fourth Street bridge with river going 
south. Phase 2:  Forth Street bridge with river going north. Removal of dam is part of the white water 
discussion. 
 
2.  Phil updates bike routes signage installation of 31 signs have been installed.  10 more poles are 
needed for Jackson and Van Buren St.   25 more signs will be needed to finish the project.  Thank you 
Phil. 
 
3.  Update on River Trail extension project:  trail almost completed from Amundson Park to hospital trail.  
A catch water basin and culvert will be added to problematic area. 
B.  Boardwalk costs for 1,300 feet to connect trail from Vennevol to Coopers Causeway could cost $30. -
$40.  a square foot.  Bob request that Darin Marsh be contacted to help with easement considerations. 
 
4.  Park an open space plan shared.  Priorities that affect our group are connecting trails, promoting river 
activities and construction of proposed-pedestrian bridges at Mandt Park and Highway 51.  Pedestrian 
safety concerns at Cooper’s causeway mentioned. 
 
5.  Motion by Phil seconded by David to approve the 2018 Compressive Outdoor Recreation Plan with a 
change in the wording on bike route considerations.  Carried. 
 
6.  Future agenda items:  Spring cleanup.  
 
7.  Motion by David second by Jon to adjourn at 6:55: carried  
 
Respectfully submitted, Nancy Hagen 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-22-19\Committee Minutes\03-Landmarks Minutes 12-13-18.doc 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday December 13, 2018 – 6:30 pm 


City Hall, Hall of Fame Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 
 


Members Present:  Peggy Veregin, Chair; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Greg Pigarelli, Secretary; 


Kimberly Cook; Todd Hubing and Kristi Panthofer 


Absent: Tom Majewski 


Staff: Michael Stacey 


Guests:  Roger Springman and Emily Bahr 


 


1. Call to order.  Veregin called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of November 8, 2018.   


Motion by Hubing to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Cook.  Motion carried 6 – 0. 
 
3. Discuss status of 1892 High School. 


Veregin stated the school district is conducting a survey of their facilities.  The 1892 Coalition 
recently met to discuss various uses and to revitalize the discussion. 
 
Roger Springman stated there is an op-ed in the Courier Hub that is disparaging to the credibility of 
a future use for the 1892 building.  The Commission discussed how to respond to the article.  
Possible responses from various groups such as the Stoughton Historical Society, Landmarks 
Commission, Sustainable Stoughton, and 1892 Coalition were discussed.  Veregin plans to draft a 
response for review by the Commission. 
 
Hubing stated Mike Connor, a teacher at the High School is seeking to start an engineering 
program with the possibility that the 1892 building could house the program.  But the focus for Mr. 
Connor is to start the program not necessarily seek the 1892 building for such use. 
 
Roger Springman stated a school facilities report came out recently that indicated the River Bluff 
School location as the most lacking for future growth which should be a positive for future use of 
the 1892 building. 
 


4. Status update for the Power Plant building. 


Roger Springman stated Gary Becker is drafting a document to seek “requests for expression of 
interest” for specific sites within the development area including the power plant building and 
public works facility property.  The idea is to seek interest and then narrow the field down to a 
couple who would provide a “request for proposal” to develop areas of the development. 
 
The group discussed the timing of listing the power plant in the national and state registry for future 
tax credits.  It may be best to wait for a developer since the tax credits would help pay for the work 
involved to list it. 
 
Future parking and splitting of the property for the power plant was discussed which is believed to 
be dependent on the potential future uses. 
 


5. Review and make recommendations for amending section 78-518. 


Motion by Cook to recommend the Plan Commission remove this section or revise it, 2nd by 
Hubing.  The commission would assist with a revision if requested.  Motion carried 6 – 0. 
 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


12/13/18 


Page 2 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-22-19\Committee Minutes\03-Landmarks Minutes 12-13-18.doc  


6. Discuss Linderud photo collection. 


Hubing plans to revise the www.historicstoughton.org website.  Some photos have been added to 
the site recently with more to come.  Hubing is trying to contact Art Wendt regarding some digital 
files he cannot locate. 
 


7. Discuss Community Outreach. 


Panthofer provided landmarks commission logo and social media designs for review and comment.   
 
The group discussed Facebook content and it was suggested this could be discussed at each 
meeting. 
 
Panthofer and Cook plan to work together on future Facebook posts. 
 
Motion by Hedstrom to approved logo #4, 2nd by Hubing.  Motion carried 6 – 0. 
 
Stacey will check if there is a social media policy or format we should be aware of. 
 


8. Discuss 2018 Preservation Award. 
Veregin sent a letter to Tony Hill of the Badger Theater regarding the award.  Once discussed, with 
Mr. Hill, a presentation is anticipated at a future Council meeting.  
 


9. Status of 2017 and 2018 local landmark grants. 


A spreadsheet summarizing the grants is provided in the packet. 


 


Veregin would like the award date and deadline to be added to the spreadsheet. 


 


The application guidelines for 2019 are planned to be reviewed at the January meeting.  Veregin 


plans to provide information for this review. 


 


10. Discuss 2019 Budget. 


The 2019 budget request was approved including $5000 for mini-grants, $1,000 for plaques, 


website hosting and administration; and $8,000 for beginning the process to create a Local 


Downtown District for a total of $14,000 


 


The group discussed priorities with the consensus being to get started on the 2019 mini-grants and 


then focus on the Local District. 


 


A map of the Downtown Historic District is needed for discussion at the January meeting. 


 


11. Discuss funding options available for the downtown area. 


Discussions have been taking place at the Council level for potential TIF or other grant funding. 


 


12. Commission Reports/Calendar.  


Nothing discussed. 


 


 


 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


12/13/18 


Page 3 of 3 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-22-19\Committee Minutes\03-Landmarks Minutes 12-13-18.doc  


13. Future agenda items. 


Discuss the downtown district to determine the appropriate area for the local district boundaries. 


Motion by Hedstrom to change the February 14th meeting date to February 13th, 2nd by Hubing.  


Motion carried 6 – 0. 


 


14. Adjournment. Motion by Hedstrom to adjourn at 8:30 pm, 2nd by Pigarelli.  Motion carried 6 - 


0. 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael Stacey 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 


Wednesday, December 12, 2018 


5:30 p.m. Hall of Fame Room, Stoughton City Hall 


 


Members Present: Roger Springman, Regina Hirsch, Denise Duranczyk, Dale Reeves, Lucas Trow, Carl 


Chenoweth called in at 7:00 p.m., Brian Girgen joined at 5:40 p.m.  


 


Absent and Excused: None 


 


Others Present: Mayor Swadley, Finance Director Friedl, Alexander Cramer, Emily Bahr, Attorneys 


Dregne and Callan joined at 6:15 p.m., Gary Becker joined at 8:20 p.m. 


 


Call to Order: Called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Springman.  


 


Communications  


Springman reminded members about the Beloit tour scheduled for Monday, December 17, 2018. 


 


Springman informed members that the WI Counties Association will be holding a workshop on January 


31, 2019 relating to how other communities are focusing on their downtowns. 


 


Springman noted that Gary Becker was informed the Public Works site will be eligible for a SAG grant 


through WEDC. 


 


Springman discussed possible options for moving forward with the RDA’s Website revisions. 


 


Public Comments  


None 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding the appointment of Finance Director Friedl as the Executive 
Director of the City of Stoughton Redevelopment as recommended by the City of Stoughton Common 
council 
 
Motion by Duranczyk to approved Finance Director Friedl as the Executive Director of the City of 
Stoughton Redevelopment Authority. Second by Trow. Motion passed 5 to 0. 
 
Approval of November 14, 2018 minutes  
 
Motion by Duranczyk to approve the November 14th minutes, second by Hirsch. Motioned passed 5 to 0. 


 
Finance Report  


 
Director Friedl provided a brief overview of the year-to-date November 30th financial statements for the 
RDA, TIF No. 5 and TIF No. 8. 


 
 







Old Business 
a. Update on Marathon site and possible action on new offer to develop site from party 


who previously breached the original offer.  
 


Motion by Hirsch to determine if the bank will offer a commitment beyond the 
comfort letter, confirm the bank is aware of the environmental issues, require 
closing date within 60 days, require ground breaking by early spring, and 
guaranteed increment by 12/31/19. Second by Girgen. Motion passed 5 to 1. 


 
b. Update on revolving loan program changes  


 
Trow noted that WWBIC is working on the changes discussed at the last meeting 
and that he is working on revising the flyer. 
 


c. Blacksmith shop insurance claim legal review and possible action 
 
Motion by Duranczyk, second by Hirsch to go into closed session at 6:15 p.m. On roll 
call vote, motion passed 6 to 0. 
 
Motion by Duranczyk, second by Girgen to go into open session at 8:16 p.m. Motion 
passed 6 to 0. 
 


d. Update on property transfer coordination with City  
 
Springman noted this process is in motion and that he will be attending the 
December 13, 2018 Landmarks Commission meeting. He plans to provide an update 
at the next regularly scheduled RDA meeting.  
 
Becker noted that the Public Works site is eligible for WEDC money and ownership 
does not have much of an impact on the property’s eligibility status. Becker will 
provide a draft SAG grant agreement at the next regularly scheduled RDA meeting.  
 


e. Update on riverbank and trail work planning for 2019 
 
Director Glynn is writing a RFP for the Mandt Park Master Plan and that includes 
some design on the Mandt Park side. He is also looking into one trail designer to 
work on both the Mandt Park and RDA sides of the River. He is also working on the 
Dam removal language and how to coordinate this work with the Whitewater Park. 
Springman noted that Lacey wanted to do all the work, but the permitting 
requirements may warrant a more well-known company in WI that is familiar with 
all of the requirements (DNR, etc.). 
 


f. Update on downtown plan resolution with City Council and possible action 
 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Hirsch to table until the next regularly scheduled 
RDA meeting. Motion passed 6 to 0. 


 
 







 
g.  Update on RFEI process and draft report  


 
Becker provided a summary of the draft RFEI and requested recommendations for 
supporting graphics. The members requested that Becker trim all unnecessary 
information from the RFEI and focus more on the RDA’s vision and goals so it will 
more resemble what La Crosse issued.  
 


Agenda items for January meeting  
 
- RFEI 
- Blacksmith Shop lawsuit and bracing 
- Downtown plan resolution 
- Revolving loan fund 
- Website 


 
Adjourn 
 


Motion by Hirsch, second by Duranczyk to adjourn the meeting at 9:09 p.m. Motion passed 6 to 0. 
 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, December 10, 2018 at 6:00 pm 
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, 
WI. 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Phil Caravello; Greg Jenson; and Tom Selsor 


Members Absent: Tom Robinson; Todd Barman and Matt Bartlett 


Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development and Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator  


Press: Alex Cramer 


Guests: Jim Bricker; Dennis Steinkraus; Josh Smith; Kendall Gulseth; Bob Feller; John and Luann 


Alme; and Emily Bahr. 


 


1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of November 12, 2018.   


Motion by Caravello to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Jenson.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Approved the rezoning for 1125 W. Main Street 


 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments as outlined in the packet.  There 


were no questions. 


 


5. Request by Bob Feller of Iconica for site plan amendment approval for the Kettle Park 


Senior Living Facility, 2600 Jackson Street. 
Scheel introduced the request.  Bob Feller gave an overview of the site plan amendments. 


 


Motion by Selsor to approve the resolution as presented, 2nd by Jenson.  Motion carried 4 - 0. 


 


6. Request for design approval by Kendall Gulseth for front façade improvements at 355 E. 


Main Street. 
Scheel introduced the request.  Josh Smith and Kendall Gulseth explained the proposed 
improvements.  Josh Smith provided an updated color rendering. 
 
The red color will be used around the upper windows also. 
 
Motion by Jenson to approve the resolution with the updated color rendering, 2nd by Caravello. 


Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


7. Request by Forward Development Group for conceptual plan approval of Kettle Park West 


Phase II. 
Scheel introduced the request.  Jim Bricker and Dennis Steinkraus gave an overview of the 


proposed conceptual plan which includes traditional neighborhood type development.  


 


Jim Bricker stated a comprehensive plan amendment will likely be necessary for the area labeled 


2C.  There are 155 residential lots total within phase II. 


 







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 


12/10/18 


Page 2 of 3 


 


Jenson questioned which lots would be first to be developed.  Dennis Steinkraus stated the lots in 


2B.  The traditional neighborhood alley loaded lots have yet to be reviewed by the Fire 


Department.  The lots within 2F will likely be duplexes.  The median price of homes should be 


around $300K. 


 


Caravello questioned the timing of the connection of Oak Opening Drive to Highway 138.  Dennis 


Steinkraus stated a permit has been obtained but he is unsure of timing. 


 


Dennis Steinkraus stated the intent is to preliminary plat all of phase II and final plat 2B as soon as 


possible. 


 


A discussion took place about a bike lane vs multi-use path on Jackson Street.  Caravello would 


like to see a bike lane on Jackson Street similar to Kings Lynn Road.  Scheel stated with parking 


only on one side of the street. 


 


Dennis Steinkraus hopes construction will start in the fall of 2019 with the full build out being 3 – 


5 years. 


 


Parking options were discussed for the neighborhood park. 


 


Jenson would like this agenda item to come back in January after the Parks and Recreation 


Committee meeting.  The commissioners agreed. 


 


8. Request by D & J Alme Partnership for extra-territorial land division approval at 2394 


Leslie Road, Town of Dunkirk. 


John Alme explained the request. 


 


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the resolution as presented, 2nd by 


Selsor.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


9. Request by Leon Wagner for extra-territorial land division approval at 1848 US Highway 


51, Town of Dunn. 


Scheel explained the request.  This is on the Council agenda for December 11th at the request of 


the applicant. 


 


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the resolution as presented, 2nd by 


Caravello.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


10. Request to approve the sale of City owned property at 3201 McComb Road for future 


development. 


Scheel explained the request is to only approve selling the property not specifics of the sale. 


 


Motion by Selsor to recommend the Common Council approve selling the property at 3201 


McComb Road, 2nd by Jenson.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


 


 







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 


12/10/18 


Page 3 of 3 


 


 


 


11. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 2-376, Stoughton Municipal Code. 


Scheel explained the ordinance amendment. 


 


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the ordinance amendment as 


presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


12. Proposed amendment to the Planning & Development Fee Schedule. 


Scheel explained the fee schedule amendment. 


 


The Commissioners would like input from the other 3 Commissioners. 


 


Motion by Jenson to Table this agenda item until next month, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 4 


– 0. 


  


13. Future agenda items. 


Kettle Park West Phase II concept plan; ordinance amendments; fee schedule amendments. 


 


14. Adjournment. 


Motion by Jenson to adjourn at 7:16 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 4 – 0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


 


Michael P. Stacey 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2018\Planning Minutes  12-10-18.docx 





		01-December 11, 2018 Finance Committee Minutes.pdf

		02-RTTF Minutees 11-5-18.pdf

		03-Landmarks Minutes 12-13-18.pdf

		04-12-12-2018 RDA Minutes.pdf

		05-Planning Minutes  12-10-18.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF COMMON COUNCIL 


To Repeal Section 10-34(b) Electrical Contractor’s License 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends approval 6 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-6-2019 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


January 22, 2019 


February 12, 2019 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Sec. 10-34 Electrical Certification. 


(a)   Certification required. No person shall supervise, inspect, alter, install or repair electrical wires 


and apparatus for the utilization of electrical current for heat, light or power in the city, except in the 


usual operations of the public utility company, without first having procured an electrical 


certification from the state as provided in this article, except that owner occupied structures may 


install or repair electrical wiring as allowed by Wisconsin Statutes.  


(b)   Electrical contractor's license. No person shall contract or undertake to construct, install or 


repair electrical wires or apparatus within the city, except as otherwise provided in this article, 


without first having obtained from the city clerk an electrical contractor's license. The electrical 


contractor shall give a surety bond to the city in the sum of $1,000.00. This bond shall be approved 


by the electrical inspector and conditioned upon the faithful compliance with the ordinances and laws 


relating to the safe electrical construction and agreement to pay all damages, costs and expenses that 


may be caused by the negligence of this person or failure to comply with the provisions of this 


article. Should such surety bond coverage cease due to expiration, cancellation, nonpayment or for 


any other reason, the relevant electrical contractor's license shall immediately become null and void. 


The licensee shall provide proof of surety bond annually to the city clerk. Only licensed electrical 


contractors can secure permits for electrical construction in the city. All employees of the electrical 


contractors that conduct electrical construction as described in this article shall be certified by the 


state as master electricians, electrical contractor restricted, journeyman electricians or 


beginner/apprentice electrician. These certifications shall be on file at the electrical inspector's office. 


No person shall conduct electrical construction in the city without proper certification by the state as 


described in this article. Each electrical contractor shall carry public liability insurance with an 


insurance company licensed to do business in this state for the amount of $1,000,000.00 for property 


damage and $1,000,000.00 for death or personal injury and shall furnish evidence of such insurance 


to the city.  


(c)   Application for electrical contractor's license. Application for an electrical contractor's license 


shall be made to the electrical inspector on forms furnished by him and shall contain a copy of the 


applicant's state certification as stated in the definition of the term "licensed electrical contractor" set 


out in section 10-33. Applications must be accompanied by the proper fee for an electrical 


contractor's license for which application is made. Every electrical contractor vehicle in use for the 


sale of electrical services in the city shall display a sign of 225 square inches. The company name 


letters shall be at least two inches high. Failure to comply will submit the company to penalties.  



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH10BUBURE_ARTIIEL_S10-33DE





(d)   Electrical license, terms, and renewals. All electrical licenses shall be for a term of one year or 


fraction thereof, and shall all expire on June 30 after the date of issuance or unless sooner revoked. 


Electrical licenses may be renewed on or before June 15 upon the filing of an application for such 


renewal with the city clerk accompanied by the usual fee, on forms furnished by him, and the 


continuing education requirements in this article are met, and are subject to the approval of the 


electrical inspector. If a license is permitted to expire, the former holder shall have the same status as 


a person not previously licensed, and the electrical board may set up such rules in its discretion for 


the renewal of such license.  


(e)   License fees. License fees for an electrical contractor's license shall be as set by the council.  


(f)   Issuance of license. Upon receipt of applications for electrical licenses, duly approved by the 


electrical inspector and/or the examining committee and with payment of fee duly acknowledged, the 


city clerk may issue the proper licenses in due form without approval of the city council or any other 


officer.  


(g)   Appointment of board of electrical examiners; composition. The board of electrical examiners 


members shall be appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the city council. The board of electrical 


examiners shall consist of but not be limited to the following:  


(1)   Fire chief or assistant fire chief, except that he cannot be a licensed or certified electrician in the 


city.  


(2)   One licensed electrical contractor.  


(3)   Director of city utilities or utilities designee, except that he cannot be an electrician in the city.  


(4)   Electrical inspector.  


(5)   One member of the city council who is not an electrician in the city.  


(6)   One state certified journeyman electrician, who is not an employee of the electrical contractor 


serving on the board.  


(7)   One state certified master electrician or state certified commercial electrical inspector.  The 


mayor shall be ex officio member of the board of electrical examiners. The mayor may choose a 


member of the city council to represent him.  


(h)   Organization of board of electrical examiners. The electrical inspector shall act as the secretary 


of the board of electrical examiners. All members of the board of electrical examiners are to be 


appointed at the organizational meeting of the common council held in April of each year. All 


members of the board of electrical examiners shall hold office until April 30 of each year or until 


their successors have been appointed and qualified. Vacancies on the board of electrical examiners 


shall be filled by a person appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the city council to complete the 


unexpired term.  


(i)   Revocation of licensed. Any license granted under this article may be revoked by the common 


council upon the recommendation of the electrical inspector and the board of electrical examiners for 


violation of any law or ordinance relating to electrical construction in such a manner as to cause 


hazard to life or property. When a license has been so revoked, the former holder thereof shall have 


the same status as a person not previously licensed.  


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 10\Amend 10-34 Electrical.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2019\1-14-19\Planning info\10-34 Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 19, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the January 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting and
Common Council Meetings of January 22 and February 12, 2019.


Proposed ordinance amendment to section 10-34(b).
This ordinance amendment is proposed to remove the local electrical contractor’s licensing
requirements including the organization of the electrical examiners board. These requirements were
eliminated several years ago due to changes in State law. The ordinance is provided. A
recommendation to Council is necessary.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/14/19
Page 3 of 3


Bartlett questioned if this section was reference anywhere in the code. Stacey stated he did not
find any references in the code or comprehensive plan.


Motion carried 6 - 0.


10. Proposed amendment to the Planning & Development Fee Schedule.
Stacey explained the proposed changes. Mayor Swadley emphasized the need to make increases
where necessary when the fee does not match the amount of staff time.


Bartlett found an error where a flat fee states a minimum which will be removed from the draft
that goes to Council.


Barman questioned consistency with other communities. Stacey stated we are consistent with
what other communities are charging for fees.


Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the resolution with the one
amendment, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.


11. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 10-34(b), Electrical Contractor License.
Stacey stated due to changes in state statutes many years ago, the City stopped charging electrical
contractors for a local license and the City does not have an electrical examiners board anymore.


Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.


12. Future agenda items.
Jenson questioned when the bee ordinance would be coming forward. Mayor Swadley stated
Attorney Dregne is starting to get caught up so he will find out what the timetable is.


Mayor Swadley stated State law changes will require some new reporting requirements by 2020
and it will be necessary to make some zoning ordinance changes too.


Kettle Park West Phase 2; Jordan Tilleson project at 193 W. Main Street; Marathon site may have
a project coming; The new owner of the old D and M Station will request a conditional use for an
outdoor display use to sell vehicles.


13. Adjournment. Motion by Jenson to adjourn at 6:30 pm, 2nd by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,


Michael P. Stacey


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes 1-14-19.docx



mstacey

Highlight

Proposed ordinance amendment to section 10-34(b), Electrical Contractor License.
Stacey stated due to changes in state statutes many years ago, the City stopped charging electrical
contractors for a local license and the City does not have an electrical examiners board anymore.
Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd
by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.






		11a-Amend 10-34 Electrical.pdf

		11b-Repeal Section 10-34 Electrical Contractors.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to amend the Planning Department Fee Schedule 


Effective February 1, 2019 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends approval 6 – 0 


 
Fiscal Impact:  unknown 


 
File Number: 


 
R-12- 2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 22, 2019 


 
WHEREAS, City of Stoughton officials desire to amend the fee schedule used by the Department of 


Planning & Development; and 


 


WHEREAS, the primary purpose of the amendment is to add a fee for requested zoning letters and 


increase various fees; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that it is appropriate to amend the fee schedule as 


presented; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Common Council finds that the amendments found in Exhibit A are fair, reasonable 


and necessary; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the amended Planning & 


Development Fee Schedule found in Exhibit A shall be adopted with an effective date of February 1, 


2019 and hereby authorizes City staff to modify the fee amounts each year based on the CPI-U for the 


Midwest Region, class size d as prepared by the Federal Department of Labor so long as the cumulative 


interim percentage of inflation warrants and increase of $5.00 or more on a round dollar amount and an 


increase to the next whole cent on amounts expressed in hundredths of a dollar. All fees listed in Exhibit 


A shall be non-refundable.   


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Res. Permit Fees schedule 2019.docx 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2019\1-14-19\Planning info\Permit Fee Schedule Amendment Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: January 2, 2019


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the January 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting and
Common Council Meeting of January 22, 2019.


Proposed amendment to the Planning and Development Fee Schedule.
Minor amendments are proposed for approval including adding a fee for a zoning letter request. A
recommendation to Council is necessary.







Page 1 of 5


Exhibit A
CITY OF STOUGHTON


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT FEE SCHEDULE
Effective on February 1, 2019


A permit is required for all construction projects (Building, Plumbing, Electrical &
HVAC) prior to commencing work even where a fee is not required. A zoning permit
is required for new structures, additions and other exterior structures such as
sheds and fencing. Include labor when providing construction costs. All fees are
non-refundable. Fees will be doubled for failure to obtain a permit and/or city
approval prior to construction activities. Additionally, a citation may be issued for
failure to obtain a permit and/or city approval prior to construction activities.


RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITS (1 & 2 FAMILY)
1. NEW STRUCTURE:


Plan Review and Inspections: $.15 per sq. ft. for all areas. $75 min.
DILHR Insignia $40
Occupancy Permit $40
Erosion Control: $130 (For land disturbing activities of 1


acre or less)


2. ADDITIONS, including decks:
Plan Review and Inspections: $.15 per sq. ft. for all areas. $75 min.
Erosion Control: $40 (For land disturbing activities of 1


acre or less)


3. REMODEL & REPAIR:
Plan Review and Inspection: $8 per $1000 in cost. $75 min.
(No fee if cost is under $500) Kitchens: Max. $100


4. OTHER: $40 individually.
Reroofing; Residing, Window and Exterior Door Replacement.
(No fee if cost including labor is under $500)


5. NO PERMIT OR FEE REQUIRED:
Storm Windows; Storm Doors; Overhead Garage Doors and Gutters/Downspouts.


6. RAZINGS, DEMOLITIONS & MOVING STRUCTURES: $75
A WDNR permit may also be necessary for razing’s and demolition’s.


COMMERCIAL BUILDING PERMITS
1. NEW STRUCTURES:


Plan Review and Inspections: $.15 per sq. ft. all areas. Min. $345
Erosion Control: $165 (For land disturbing activities less


than 4,000 sq. ft.)


Zoning Review and Inspections: $455







Page 2 of 5


2. ADDITIONS:
Plan Review and Inspections: $.15 per sq. ft. for addition. Min $345
Erosion Control: $85 (For land disturbing activity less than


4,000 sq. ft.)


Zoning Review and Inspections: $325


3. REMODEL & REPAIR:
Plan Review and Inspections: $8 per $1000 in cost. Min. $85
(No fee if cost including labor is under $500)


4. EARLY START PERMIT: $165
Site and erosion control plans must be submitted and approved by the City,
including providing Department of Commerce early start letter prior to excavation.


5. RAZINGS, DEMOLITIONS & MOVING STRUCTURES: $100
A WDNR permit may also be necessary for razing’s and demolition’s.


6. SIGNS: $75 per application
(Commercial Electric permit is required if necessary)


7. OTHER: $50, individually.
Reroofing; Residing, Window and Exterior Door Replacement:
(No fee if cost including labor is under $500)


8. NO PERMIT OR FEE REQUIRED:
Storm windows; storm doors; garage doors; and gutters/downspouts.


COMMERCIAL & RESIDENTIAL
PLUMBING PERMITS


RESIDENTIAL:
NEW STRUCTURES/ADDITIONS: $.05 per sq. ft. all areas. Min. $50
REMODEL/REPAIR/MISCELLANEOUS: $50


(No fee if cost including labor is under $500)
SPRINKLER/ALARM FEE: $185 plus $.01 per sq. ft.


COMMERCIAL:
NEW STRUCTURES/ADDITIONS: $.06 per sq. ft. all areas. Min. $85
REMODEL/REPAIR/MISCELLANEOUS: $85
SPRINKLER/ALARM FEE: $185 plus $.01 per sq. ft.


ELECTRICAL PERMITS
RESIDENTIAL:


NEW STRUCTURES/ADDITIONS: $.05 per sq. ft. all areas. Min. $50
REWIRE/REMODEL/MISCELLANEOUS: $50


(No fee if cost including labor is under $500)







Page 3 of 5


COMMERCIAL:
NEW STRUCTURES/ADDITIONS: $.10 per sq. ft. all areas. Min. $85
REWIRE/REMODEL/MISCELLANEOUS: $150


HVAC PERMITS
RESIDENTIAL:


NEW STRUCTURES/ADDITIONS: $.05 per sq. ft. all areas. Min $50
REMODEL/REPLACEMENT/MISCELLANEOUS: $50


(No fee if cost including labor is under $500)


COMMERCIAL:
NEW STRUCTURES/ADDITIONS: $.06 per sq. ft. all areas. Min $85
REMODEL/REPLACEMENT/MISCELLANEOUS: $85


ZONING APPLICATIONS
VARIANCES/APPEALS: $405


CONDITIONAL USE: $405 plus $40 - document recording fee.


REZONING or GENERAL
DEVELOPMENT PLAN: $405


PLANNING COMMISSION SITE PLAN
OR SPECIFIC IMPLEMENTATION
PLAN REVIEW FEE: $200 300


RESIDENTIAL ZONING REVIEW FEE: $50 75
A zoning review is required for: Sheds; Fencing; Pools; Detached Garages; New
Residential Homes; Any Accessory Structure and any Additions including decks.


COMMERCIAL ZONING REVIEW FEE: $85 100
A zoning review is required for: Small storage sheds, fencing and temporary uses


CSM AND PLATS
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP: $160 & $40/ Lot*


PRELIMINARY PLAT FEE: $415 & $40/ Lot*


FINAL PLAT FEE: $250 & $40/ Lot*
*plus reimbursement of any additional costs incurred over the permit fee.


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND EROSION CONTROL
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FEES:


$405 plus $.015 .020 per sq. ft. of impervious area and $.015 .020 per sq. ft. of
redeveloped impervious area.
* Any additional cost incurred over the permit fee amount will be billed to the
property owner and/or responsible party.







Page 4 of 5


EROSION CONTROL:
$200 plus $.006 .008 per sq. ft. of disturbed area. (For commercial; industrial and
multi-family residential land disturbing activities of 4,000 sq. ft. and greater and
disturbed areas >1 acre for one and two family residential)
* Any additional cost incurred over the permit fee amount will be billed to the
property owner and/or responsible party.


MISCELLANEOUS:
COMMUNICATION TOWER/STRUCTURE:


A conditional use permit (CUP) is required plus total cost of professional review if
deemed necessary for any new communication tower or structure.


DRIVEWAYS: $30


PUBLIC SIDEWALKS: No Fee


ZONING LETTERS: $50


DOWNTOWN DESIGN OVERLAY
ZONING DISTRICT REVIEWS: $100
(N/A for signage, structural project
or demolition requests)


DOWNTOWN DESIGN OVERLAY
ZONING DISTRICT STRUCTURAL
PROJECT OR DEMOLITION
REQUESTS: $405


ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:
Additional information can be found at www.cityofstoughton.com/planning . There are links
to applications; information pamphlets; zoning map; Access Dane and the comprehensive
plan. All fees are non-refundable.







Page 5 of 5


CONTACTS:
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT, RODNEY SCHEEL
OFFICE – 608-873-6619
CELL – 608-577-1891
rjscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us


ZONING ADMINISTRATOR, MICHAEL STACEY
OFFICE – 608-646-0421
CELL – 608-209-7768
mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us


BUILDING INSPECTION, STEVE KITTELSON
OFFICE – 608-873-7626
CELL – 608-577-1893
skittelson@ci.stoughton.wi.us


ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT, DESI WEUM
OFFICE – 608-873-7626
dweum@ci.stoughton.wi.us


CITY HALL FAX – 608-873-5519


s:\planning\mps\permit fees\permit fees by year\proposed amended fee schedule effective feb 1, 2019-exhibit a.doc







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/14/19
Page 3 of 3


Bartlett questioned if this section was reference anywhere in the code. Stacey stated he did not
find any references in the code or comprehensive plan.


Motion carried 6 - 0.


10. Proposed amendment to the Planning & Development Fee Schedule.
Stacey explained the proposed changes. Mayor Swadley emphasized the need to make increases
where necessary when the fee does not match the amount of staff time.


Bartlett found an error where a flat fee states a minimum which will be removed from the draft
that goes to Council.


Barman questioned consistency with other communities. Stacey stated we are consistent with
what other communities are charging for fees.


Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the resolution with the one
amendment, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.


11. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 10-34(b), Electrical Contractor License.
Stacey stated due to changes in state statutes many years ago, the City stopped charging electrical
contractors for a local license and the City does not have an electrical examiners board anymore.


Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.


12. Future agenda items.
Jenson questioned when the bee ordinance would be coming forward. Mayor Swadley stated
Attorney Dregne is starting to get caught up so he will find out what the timetable is.


Mayor Swadley stated State law changes will require some new reporting requirements by 2020
and it will be necessary to make some zoning ordinance changes too.


Kettle Park West Phase 2; Jordan Tilleson project at 193 W. Main Street; Marathon site may have
a project coming; The new owner of the old D and M Station will request a conditional use for an
outdoor display use to sell vehicles.


13. Adjournment. Motion by Jenson to adjourn at 6:30 pm, 2nd by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,


Michael P. Stacey


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes 1-14-19.docx



mstacey

Highlight

Proposed amendment to the Planning & Development Fee Schedule.
Stacey explained the proposed changes. Mayor Swadley emphasized the need to make increases
where necessary when the fee does not match the amount of staff time.
Bartlett found an error where a flat fee states a minimum which will be removed from the draft
that goes to Council.
Barman questioned consistency with other communities. Stacey stated we are consistent with
what other communities are charging for fees.
Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the resolution with the one
amendment, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.






		12a- R-12-2019 Res. Permit Fees schedule 2019.pdf

		12b-Planning and Development Fee Schedule Amendment.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE REDEVELPMENT AUTHORIDY TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority to Undertake Planning 


Activities relating to the Central Business District  


Previous Action: 


 


Redevelopment Authority 


Approved 6-0 


   
File Number: 


 
R-13-2019 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
January 22, 2019 


 


WHEREAS, the RDA was established by the City Council to eliminate blight and improve the vitality 


of underutilized areas in TID 4 (downtown), TID 5 (railroad corridor), TID 8 (riverfront re-


development), and 


WHEREAS, the RDA's Riverfront Project (TID 8) is adjacent to the downtown, it is vital for the RDA to 


assure that essential economic, social, pedestrian, and traffic planning and coordination occurs in a timely 


manner over the next two years, and 


 


WHEREAS, the RDA has identified the following goals: 1) solicit input from downtown stakeholders to 


determine major issues and needs facing the downtown area, 2) identify strategies and opportunities to 


advance downtown economic development, 3) update and review development plans and opportunities 


for the eastern end of Main Street, and 


 


WHEREAS, the results of this proposed revitalization effort and its output in the form of initial 


stakeholder comments and suggestions could eventually lead to the development of plans such as a 


downtown marketing plan, a business retention plan, ways to attract new businesses, etc., and 


 


WHEREAS, the RDA has taken steps to assist downtown businesses by revising its Revolving Loan 


Program for easier downtown business use and access, and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton's Comprehensive Land Use Plan identifies the need to develop a 


Downtown Master Plan and the above information could be used during that process, and  


 


WHEREAS, in the spring election of 2015 78% of the citizens directed the city government to focus on 


revitalizing our downtown, and 


 


WHEREAS, there is money available in TID #4 to do planning activities and the RDA has authority in 


this TID, 


THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the RDA will 


form a sub-committee of the RDA in consultation with the City Council to start work on revitalization 


efforts for the Downtown Business District whose boundaries will be defined from Page Street to Coffee 


Street on Main street and 2-3 blocks off of Main Street to the north and south. 


 


 







 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


          


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     







Timeline for Downtown Revitalization Project 


Resolution to City Council     January 22, 2019 


Form subcommittee of RDA     Jan. & Feb. 2019 


1st Meeting of subcommittee     Early March 2019 


Discuss process to hire consultant-Gary Becker will assist with names of local 


urban planners and interview questions 


2nd Meeting-talk to candidates     Early April 2019 


3rd Meeting-select consultant    Late April/early May 


4th Meeting-define scope of service    May/June 2019 


This will be based on the goals listed in the resolution with possible studies once 


the subcommittee has listened to stakeholders. 


Planning Process/Implimentation   July 2019-April 2020 


 Monthly meetings with consultant 


 Early in the process will do stakeholders meetings to clarify issues and 


perceived strengthens in downtown 


 Based on this feedback, will examine the need for additional studies i.e. 


parking, traffic, economic analysis, etc. so subcommittee has reliable data 


 Once the subcommittee has listened to stakeholders and examined data 


from studies, goals will be developed 


 Recommendations will be made based on economic visibility and 


community buy in with presentation made to RDA, City Council and the 


public 


 


Estimated cost for consultant is $30,000-$40,000 which will come from TID 4 







planning line item. 





		13a-.pdf

		13b-Timeline Downtown Revitalization.pdf






Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, January 8, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 


Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley  


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


Clerk Licht called the roll and noted that there were 11 alders present.  


 


Planning Director Scheel said that the Public Works Facility will be operational starting on Monday.  He 


also stated that there would be a street construction meeting Thursday, February 17th at 6:00 p.m. at the 


Fire Department Training Room.  


 


Mayor Swadley announced that the Senior Center was awarded national accreditation.  


 


Hirsch thanked Wiessinger for her time on the City Council.  


 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes were entered into the record. 


RDA (11/14/18); Landmarks (11/8/18); Planning Commission (11/12/18); Parks & Rec (11/20/18); 


Tree Commission (11/8/18); Library Board (11/21/2018); CA CP (12/4/2018)  


 


Public Comment Period:  


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. December 11, 2018 Council Minutes 


B. R- 1-2019- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 


Licenses  


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Boersma to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


None  


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-2-2019- Approving an extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by D 


and J Alme Partnership for property located at 2394 Leslie Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane 


County, Wisconsin 


 


Motion by Bartlett, second by Duranczyk to approve R-2-2019 Approving an extra-territorial 


jurisdictional (ETJ) land division (CSM) request by D and J Alme Partnership for property 


located at 2394 Leslie Road, Town of Dunkirk, Dane County, Wisconsin. Motion carried 11-0. 


  


 







 


 


O-1-2019-Amending Ordinance Section 2-376 of the Stoughton Municipal Administration Ordinance 


 


Bartlett offered O-1-2019 for the first reading. The ordinance will be back before the council on January 


22, 2019.  


 


R-3-2019- Approving a request by Kevin Yeska of JSD Professional Services to extend the 


Conditional Use Permit for the project located at Kettle Park West-Lot 15 until October 8, 2019   


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Boersma to approve the R-3-2019 Approving a request by Kevin 


Yeska of JSD Professional Services to extend the Conditional Use Permit for the project located 


at Kettle Park West-Lot 15 until October 8, 2019.  Motion carried 10-1 with Johnson voting ‘no’.  


 


R-5-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to amend the 2019-2023 City of 


Stoughton CIP Budget moving the purchase of a $250,000 high efficiency street sweeper from 


2021 to 2020 to remain eligible for $54,464 in grant funding  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Jenson to approve R-5-2019 Authorizing and directing the 


proper city officials to amend the 2019-2023 City of Stoughton CIP Budget moving the purchase 


of a $250,000 high efficiency street sweeper from 2021 to 2020 to remain eligible for $54,464 in 


grant funding. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


R-6-2019- Formally adopting the WisDOT’s procurement and contract administration manual 


and vehicle disposition guidelines as they relate to Stoughton Transit 


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Reeves to approve R-6-2019 Formally adopting the WisDOT’s 


procurement and contract administration manual and vehicle disposition guidelines as they relate 


to Stoughton Transit. Motion carried 11-0. 


 


Discussion and possible action regarding the aldermanic seat vacancy in District 4 due to 


the resignation of Nicole Wiessinger  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by O’Connor to appoint someone to fill the seat until a special 


election can be held in April of 2020.  The council decided to publish the notice in the Hub for 


two weeks. The applicants will be interviewed at the February 12, 2019 Council meeting. Motion 


carried 11-0.  


 


R-7-2019- Confirming the Mayor’s appointment of Matt Bartlett to the Utilities Committee, 


pursuant to 2-127 of the Stoughton Municipal Code  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Jenson to approve R-7-2019 Confirming the Mayor’s 


appointment of Matt Bartlett to the Utilities Committee, pursuant to 2-127 of the Stoughton 


Municipal Code. Motion carried 11-0.  


 







R-8-2019-Consenting to McFarland State Bank’s request to continue their use of the drive-up 


ATM located at 207 S. Forrest Street through the Second Wednesday in March  


 


This item was removed from the agenda. The council had no discussion and took no action on 


the item.  


R-4-2019- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the appointment 


and hiring of the City of Stoughton Utilities Director salaried at $127,150.40.  An increase to 


$130,145.60 to occur on 1/1/2020.  $130,145.60 will be adjusted by the market increase 


percent, if approved by Council.  If no market increase for 2020, salary would be increased to 


$130,145.60 on 1/1/2020.   


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Majewski to go into closed session for R-4-2019, R-8-2019, and 


R-9-2019 at 7:31 p.m. On roll call vote, motion carried 11-0.  


 


Motion by Boersma, second by Duranczyk to go into open session at 8:59 p.m. Motion carried 


11-0. 


 


Motion by Reeves, second by Hirsch to approve R-4-2019 Authorizing and directing the proper 


city official(s) to approve the appointment and hiring of the City of Stoughton Utilities Director 


Jill Wiess salaried at $127,150.40 subject to background investigation and reference checks.  An 


increase to $130,145.60 to occur on 1/1/2020.  $130,145.60 will be adjusted by the market 


increase percent, if approved by Council. Motion carried 11-0.  


 


R-8-2019- Approving the Drive-Through Lease between the City of Stoughton (“Landlord”) and 


McFarland State Bank (“Tenant”) at the real property located at 207 S. Forrest Street and 216 E. 


Main Street.  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by O’Connor to approve R-8-2019 Approving the Drive-Through 


Lease between the City of Stoughton (“Landlord”) and McFarland State Bank (“Tenant”) at the 


real property located at 207 S. Forrest Street and 216 E. Main Street.  Motion carried 9-2 with 


O’Connor and Duranczyk voting ‘no’.  


 


R-9-2019- Approving the Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between Junction 


138, LLC and the City of Stoughton, WI for the property located at 3201 McComb Road.  


 


Motion by Duranczyk, second by Jenson to approve R-9-2019. Motion failed on a vote of 1-10 


with O’Connor voting ‘yes’.  


 


Adjournment  


Motion Duranczyk, second by Caravello to adjourn at 9:04 p.m. Motion carried 11-0 


 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk  








 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-10-2019 


 
Date Introduced:   January 22, 2019 


 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from the 


following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Alexandra Maher    Deaks 


Anne Shapiro     Viking Lanes 


  Jacob Warnlof     Kwik Trip #893 


     


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an Operator 


Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 


 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-8-19\06a-O-1-2018 Plan Com Secretary - Ch. 2 2018.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Ordinance Section 2-376  of the City of Stoughton Municipal Administration Ordinance   


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends approval 4 - 0  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O - 1 - 2019 First Reading:  


Second Reading:  


January 8, 2019 


   January 22, 2019 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


2 – 376  Composition 


The plan commission shall consist of seven members: the mayor, three city residents who are not city 


officials for three-year staggered terms (one for one year, one for two years, one for three years, and 


thereafter for three-year terms), and three alderpersons. The commission will elect an alderperson as 


vice-chair and to be the liaison with the city council annually at its first regularly scheduled meeting 


after the council reorganization meeting and an alternate liaison to the city council, if the elected 


alderperson is not available. All members of the commission shall be appointed by the mayor and 


approved by the city council. The building inspector director of planning & development and zoning 


administrator shall serve as staff to the commission and with the zoning administrator acting as its 


secretary. The mayor shall act as chair and shall vote aye, nay, or abstain. The commission shall elect a 


vice-chair annually at its first regularly scheduled meeting after the council reorganization meeting. 


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              
        Holly Licht, City Clerk 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2018\12-10-18\Planning Info\2-376 Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: November 30, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the December 10, 2018 Plan Commission Meeting and
Common Council Meetings of January 8 and January 22, 2019.


Proposed ordinance amendment to section 2-376.
This ordinance amendment is primarily to change the Plan Commission Secretary from the Building
Inspector to the Zoning Administrator and to clarify the annual election of a Vice-Chair. A
recommendation to Council is necessary.





		06a-O-1-2018 Plan Com Secretary - Ch. 2 2018.pdf

		06b-Ordinance Amend Section 2-376.pdf






 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Jim Killian to the Rivers & Trails Task Force, pursuant 


to 2-127 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 
 
Committee Action: 


 
N/A 


 
Fiscal Impact: $-0- 
 
File Number: 


 
R-11-2019 


 
Date Introduced:  


 
January 22, 2019  


 


WHEREAS, David Sharpe has resigned from the Rivers & Trails Task Force and the Mayor has 


submitted his appointment to fill the vacancy for a term ending in 2019; and  


 


WHEREAS, the appointment is as follows: 


 


Rivers and Trails Task Force 


Jim Killian  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) confirm the Mayor’s appointment of Jim Killian to the Rivers and Trails Task Force.  


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor     Date 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-22-19\07a-O-2-2019 Keeping of Chickens 78-206.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Zoning Code Section 78-206(8)(y) of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends approval 6 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O - 2- 2019 First Reading:  


Second Reading:  


January 22, 2019 


February 12, 2019 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Sec. 78-206(8)(y) Keeping of chickens 


Description: A maximum of four six hen chickens (no roosters) are allowed by right on 


residentially zoned property with a single-family, duplex or twin home residential unit. 


Additionally, the keeping of chickens shall be allowed for Group Daycares, Schools and 


Church uses within the Planned Business and Institutional zoning districts. The following 


requirements shall also apply to the keeping of chickens:  


1.         Regulations: 


a. No person shall keep chickens without a city license. The license must be 


renewed annually by March 31st.  The license year is from January 1 through 


December 31.  


b. No chicken coop or run area shall be closer than 25 feet to any residential 


home on an adjacent lot and the coop and run area shall only be located 


within the rear yard and/or side yard.  


c. Chicken coops that are less than 65 square feet in area are exempt from a 


zoning permit and fee.  


d. Chicken coops must conform to the accessory structure requirements of the 


specific zoning district where located.  


e. Any electrical work requires an electrical permit through the department of 


planning and development.  


f. Chickens shall be kept within the coop or run area at all times. The run area 


shall include an area fenced with materials to sufficiently contain chickens.  A 


zoning permit and fee is required for fencing an area over 100 square feet.  


Fencing shall meet all zoning requirements.  


g. Selling of eggs is prohibited. 


h. Slaughtering of chickens is prohibited. 


i. The noise standards in section 6-5 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances must 


be adhered to.  



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH65RE

https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH6AN_S6-5NOANFO





j. The public nuisances - noxious odors standards specified in section 58-8 of 


the Stoughton Code of Ordinances must be adhered to.  


k. Proof of livestock premises registration with the Wisconsin Department of 


Agriculture must be provided prior to the license being issued including 


renewals.  


l. Chickens shall be provided a covered enclosure for protection. 


 


 


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\Keeping of Chickens 78-206.doc 



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH58PUNU_S58-8PUNUAFHE





T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2019\1-14-19\Planning info\78-206(8)(y) Chickens Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 19, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the January 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting and
Common Council Meetings of January 22 and February 12, 2019.


Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-206(8)(y)
There was a citizen request to increase the number of hen chickens allowed per property from 4
hens to 6 hens. After a discussion with the citizen, the Plan Commission requested a public hearing
take place for this request. Staff has had no issues with the number of chickens in the past. The
proposed ordinance and backup materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary.







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Keeping of Chickens Notice 18.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, January 14,
2019 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public
Safety Building, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to
consider a proposed ordinance amendment to the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of
Ordinances section 78-206(8)(y). This proposed amendment is to change the number of
hens allowed from four hens to six hens within the City of Stoughton, Dane County,
Wisconsin.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at
608-646-0421


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published November 29, 2018 and December 6, 2018 Hub







-------- Original message --------
From: Amanda Venturino <ajm69@cornell.edu>
Date: 8/21/18 11:57 AM (GMT-06:00)
To: Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us>
Subject: Petition the city for increases in chicken numbers


Dear Greg Jenson,


I'd like to introduce myself. My name is Amanda Venturino, and I moved to Stoughton a year ago. I am an
Animal Scientist, with 3 degrees from 3 different universities in the subject matter. As an animal lover, I was
rather pleased to be able to have some chickens and become an urban chicken farmer. So far, I am really
enjoying the experience and the opportunity the city provides for us.


The system for getting a permit is relatively easy, which I appreciate. Alas, I have run into a few issues during
the process related to the number of allowable birds. Therefore, I would like to petition the city to increase the
number of chickens from 4 to 6. Not only have I personally considered the issues I will outline below but I have
also been speaking with other members of the community, anecdotally and personally, regarding the number of
birds. You see, this issue isn’t rooted in wanting more chickens, but it is more an issue of maintaining a flock;
ensuring animal welfare is being properly address, as dictated by our national governing bodies; and utilizing
our community's resources optimally.


I would like to petition the city to increase the flock size from 4 to 6 chickens and would like for this to be on the
upcoming meeting agenda open for discussion.


The essential stance for my argument is as follows: Under the current guidelines and restrictions to 4 hens,
one is unable to maintain a productive flock by utilizing the city's current resources following national poultry
care and welfare standards. To be able to follow these guidelines and use Stoughton's resources for keep
backyard hens, we need to increase the number of chickens for 4 to 6.


You see 4 chickens is a reasonable number, however, the problem comes when I lose a chicken either to
predation or natural causes. Birds are relatively fragile in terms of their immune defenses to normal pathogens.
So, let’s say I lose 1 bird. Animal standards of care and welfare established through diligent research, ethical
management and USDA regulations do not approve keeping just one solitary bird. Therefore, I cannot start
growing a replacement chick. I would have to wait until another bird dies—now my production is cut in half and
I will not longer be able to meet my consumption needs. This does not allow for a person or family to effectively
utilize their flock as a resource for egg consumption, therefore, causing undue financial burden.


But let’s say that my consumption is fine, and I can wait until 2 of my birds pass to replenish my flock so my
hen will have a buddy. So, the following spring another hens passes, and I go down to the Tractor Supply store
to replenish my flock with 2 new birds. Come to find out, the national chain of stores has a policy in place that I
cannot buy 2 chicks at 1 time—I must by 4. With the city’s restrictions on the number of birds I have, there are
not 2 options:


1. I buy 4 chicks, they’re cheap enough, and euthanize 2.
2. I have to wait until all 4 of my hens have passed away before replenishing my flock.


Technically, slaughtering foul within city limits is illegal. In addition, my moral compass does not allow for me to
do such a thing which is going to be a similar feeling held by others in this situation. Chicken owners do not get
into flock ownership just to euthanize baby chicks.


With the second option I am forced to not only wait until my entire flock dies, but then I must wait until the next
chicks are old enough to produce eggs. It takes a chick roughly 18-20 weeks to become an active producer, so
from a conservative estimate barring that everything goes smoothly and chicks are available, that’s 5 months of
lost egg production. On the high end you’re looking at these additional constraints: waiting for older non-
producing chickens to die which could be years, and the span of time between when an older chicken will die
and when our local supplier has chicks available. So, following the constraints of our local resources including
the policies set forth by a national renowned farm supply chain, for a resident of Stoughton to maintain
consistent egg production is impossible.







So, at this point a chicken owner would have to seek a chick supplier outside of town. You must be thinking,
surely there are other options. Well, there are. First off, I can order birds from a company have them shipped by
the US Post Office. It’s a wonderful opportunity to be able to purchase my desired breeds of interest and get
exactly what I want. However, birds MUST be shipped with a minimum of 3 chicks per purchase, and the
associated shipping fee is astronomical for the purchase. How about an option in the surrounding community of
Stoughton, somewhere else in Wisconsin state? There are a few chicken farms in the surrounding area of
Wisconsin under an hour’s drive away where you can purchase a small selection of chicks. Several of them are
meat bird breeds and we’ve established that we cannot slaughter within city limits nor is keeping meat birds the
intention of urban chicken farming. And ALL of these farms, whether meat or egg layer breeds, require a
minimum purchase of at least 3 birds at one time. As I mentioned earlier, keeping one solitary bird is incredibly
stressful for the animal. Welfare standards do not condone this sort of husbandry. So, if I wait for 3 birds to
pass away, then I am also doing something unethical and causing terrible stress to an animal.


If I choose to purchase birds online to start my flock, I also have to buy them in packs of 3. I cannot simply buy
4, I have to buy 3 or 6. Therefore, with current regulations I would again, be forced to euthanize 2 chicks just to
meet out city’s regulations.


If Stoughton allowed for 6 birds instead of 4, this would alleviate the undue financial burden when chicks pass,
allow for easier purchasing of replacement chicks, ensure community flock owners can us local resources
keeping dollars within the city limits, and sustain proper welfare and ethical standards as outlined by Animal
Scientists and the USDA federal welfare recommendations. For example, if I lose 2 birds, I can purchase 4, not
be forced to euthanize chicks, and still maintain a productive flock. When the older birds pass, I have still been
able to maintain my egg production without causing additional financial issues. New chicks will be purchased in
numbers that are suggested by animal professionals and I can maintain a health flock. If I choose, I can even
purchase 3 chicks from an online retailer and still be able to maintain effective numbers. If I had 2 pass away
and purchase 3 chicks I now have 5, and I am still within the regulations of Stoughton.


You may be concerned with increasing numbers of chickens within city limits, that this is somehow a concern
for neighbors, welfare, etc. Well, I can guarantee that there is little difference between housing 4 vs 6 chickens.
Coops are large enough to easily accommodate 2 more birds, waste management is hardly an issue, and since
I am not requesting the presence of roosters, there is still no issue for noise complaints.


In conclusion, I would like to point out the following:
The goal of regulations for a city’s inhabitants is not provide undue burden to its inhabitants, but rather make
processes easier for residents as whole. The 4 hen rule is, in fact, outdated, does not address the current
climate of Stoughton, and causes undue stress on flock owners and their birds.


If you have any additional questions regarding the argument I have outlined, please feel free to email or call me
to discuss further. I would be happy to continue to broach this subject matter in greater detail providing you with
more evidentiary support. In addition, I would like some information how to proceed with my petition: what is
needed to be successful? Who else do I speak to? What is the remaining process? I am more than willing to
present my argument to the board or other governing body.


Thank you for your time and help with my petition.
Sincerely,


Amanda Venturino
Cell: 608-609-6441


--
--Sincerely, Amanda







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 14, 2019 at 6:00 pm
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Todd Barman; Matt Bartlett, Vice-Chair; Greg
Jenson; Tom Robinson; and Tom Selsor
Members Absent: Phil Caravello
Staff: Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator
Press: None
Guests: Amanda Venturino; Elizabeth Weitner; Emily Bahr; and Louis Halverson.


1. Call to order. Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of December 10, 2018.
Motion by Barman to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Selsor. Motion carried 6 – 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Bartlett reported the conditional use extension was approved for Tru Hotel and there are plans to
start construction in April. The Council also approved the 2 extra-territorial CSM requests.


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.
Stacey introduced the status of current developments as outlined in the packet of materials. There
were no questions.


5. Request by Mackensey Gervasi for a conditional use permit to allow a group daycare and
preschool at 1940 Jackson Street.
Mayor Swadley introduced the request. Stacey stated the applicant has requested this agenda item
be removed from consideration.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Bartlett to Table the request, 2nd by Barman. Motion carried 6 – 0.


6. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-206(8)(y), Keeping of Chickens.
Stacey gave an overview of the requested change from 4 hens to 6 hens.


Jenson stated agenda item 6 and 7 are related to chickens and he is in favor of approving item 6
and removing the section in item 7 due to redundancy.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


Elizabeth Weitner spoke in favor of the change.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.



mstacey

Highlight

Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-206(8)(y), Keeping of Chickens.
Stacey gave an overview of the requested change from 4 hens to 6 hens.
Jenson stated agenda item 6 and 7 are related to chickens and he is in favor of approving item 6
and removing the section in item 7 due to redundancy.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.
Elizabeth Weitner spoke in favor of the change.
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.








Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/14/19
Page 2 of 3


Selsor stated the amendment makes sense.


Motion by Selsor to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance amendment as
presented, 2nd by Robinson.


Bartlett stated he checked with Police Chief Leck who stated there have been no complaints
related to chickens. Stacey stated there have been no issues with chickens and he believes there
will be no issues adding 2 more hens.


Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 6-2(b), Keeping of Animals.
Jenson stated this section is redundant and should be removed. Stacey stated the first 2 sentences
could be removed.


Barman stated a reference to the zoning code should be added at the end of the section.


Motion by Jenson to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance with the first 2
sentences removed and a reference to the zoning code section related to the keeping of chickens
added at the end, 2nd by Barman. Motion carried 6 - 0.


8. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-916(2)(o), Zoning Administrator.
Stacey explained there is a variance procedure to request small changes to the zoning
requirements and staff has never given out waivers administratively.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 - 0.


9. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-518, Residential historic design overlay zoning
district.
Stacey explained this section does not have any requirements and refers to a document that was
established in 1998. Also, the Landmarks Commission reviewed this section and recommends
removal or possible amendments.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Jenson.



mstacey

Highlight

Selsor stated the amendment makes sense.
Motion by Selsor to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance amendment as
presented, 2nd by Robinson.
Bartlett stated he checked with Police Chief Leck who stated there have been no complaints
related to chickens. Stacey stated there have been no issues with chickens and he believes there
will be no issues adding 2 more hens.
Motion carried 6 – 0.






		07a-O-2-2019 Keeping of Chickens 78-206.pdf

		07b-Sec 78-206(8)(y) Keeping of Chickens.pdf






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-22-19\08a-Sec 6-2 Keeping of animals.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


AMENDING SECTION 6-2(b) OF THE STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL CODE 


 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends Council approval 6 - 0  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-3- 2019 First Reading:   


Second Reading: 


January 22, 2019 


February 12, 2019 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 6-2(b) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code is amended as follows: 


 


Sec. 6-2. - Keeping of animals, birds and bees regulations.  


 


(b)   A maximum of four domesticated female chickens (hens) may be kept out of doors in 


appropriate enclosures with proper shelter. A permit must be applied for and issued by the 


city clerk prior to the keeping of chickens.  A maximum of three rabbits may be kept out 


of doors as pets, but not bred for meat or sale. Dogs may be kept out of doors in 


appropriate enclosures with proper shelter.  Small animals, reptiles, birds and fish that are 


housed within a residence shall be permitted. Small animals include, but are not limited to 


dogs, tropical fish, parrots, parakeets, cockatiels, canaries, cockatoos, finches, love birds, 


house cats, guinea pigs, gerbils, hamsters, fancy mice and rats, reptiles and turtles.  


Horses are conditionally allowed within the rural holding and exurban residential 


districts.  For the keeping of chickens see zoning code section 78-206(8)(y). 


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates  


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2019\1-14-19\Planning info\Keeping of animals memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: January 15, 2019


To: Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the Common Council Meetings of January 22 and February 12,
2019.


Proposed ordinance amendment to section 6-2(b)
There was a citizen request to increase the number of hen chickens allowed per property from 4
hens to 6 hens. After a discussion with the citizen, the Plan Commission recommends a change to
the zoning code. Section 6-2(b) related to hen chickens is redundant and is recommended to be
removed. The proposed ordinance amendment is provided.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/14/19
Page 2 of 3


Selsor stated the amendment makes sense.


Motion by Selsor to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance amendment as
presented, 2nd by Robinson.


Bartlett stated he checked with Police Chief Leck who stated there have been no complaints
related to chickens. Stacey stated there have been no issues with chickens and he believes there
will be no issues adding 2 more hens.


Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 6-2(b), Keeping of Animals.
Jenson stated this section is redundant and should be removed. Stacey stated the first 2 sentences
could be removed.


Barman stated a reference to the zoning code should be added at the end of the section.


Motion by Jenson to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance with the first 2
sentences removed and a reference to the zoning code section related to the keeping of chickens
added at the end, 2nd by Barman. Motion carried 6 - 0.


8. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-916(2)(o), Zoning Administrator.
Stacey explained there is a variance procedure to request small changes to the zoning
requirements and staff has never given out waivers administratively.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 - 0.


9. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-518, Residential historic design overlay zoning
district.
Stacey explained this section does not have any requirements and refers to a document that was
established in 1998. Also, the Landmarks Commission reviewed this section and recommends
removal or possible amendments.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Jenson.



mstacey

Highlight

Proposed ordinance amendment to section 6-2(b), Keeping of Animals.
Jenson stated this section is redundant and should be removed. Stacey stated the first 2 sentences
could be removed.
Barman stated a reference to the zoning code should be added at the end of the section.
Motion by Jenson to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance with the first 2
sentences removed and a reference to the zoning code section related to the keeping of chickens
added at the end, 2nd by Barman. Motion carried 6 - 0.






		08a-Sec 6-2 Keeping of animals.pdf

		08b-Sec 6-2 Keeping of animals.pdf






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-22-19\Amending Section 78-916.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Zoning Code Section 78-916(2)(o) of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends approval 6 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-4- 2019 First Reading:  


Second Reading:  


January 22, 2019 


February 12, 2019 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Sec. 78-916(2)(o) – Zoning Administrator.  


(2)   Duties. The provisions of this chapter shall be administered and enforced by the zoning 


administrator or a designee, who in addition thereto and in furtherance of said authority shall:  


 


(a)   Determine that all detailed site analyses, building permits, certificates of occupancy, sign 


permits, site plans, (and their constituent plans) comply with all provisions of this chapter.  


 


(b)   Conduct inspections of buildings, structures, waters and land to determine compliance with all 


provisions of this chapter.  


 


(c)   Be permitted access to premises and structures during reasonable hours to make those 


inspections as deemed necessary by him to ensure compliance with this chapter. If, however he is 


refused entry after presentations of his identification, he may procure a special inspection warrant in 


accordance with Section 66.0119(2) of the Wisconsin statutes. Conduct inspections of buildings, 


structures, waters and land to determine compliance with all provisions of this chapter.  


 


(d)   Maintain permanent and current records of this chapter, including but not limited to all maps, 


amendments, conditional uses, temporary uses, sign permits, site plans, occupancy permits, 


variances, appeals, interpretations, and applications therefor.  


 


(e)   Record the first floor and lowest floor (basement or crawlway) elevations of all structures 


erected, moved, altered, or improved in the floodland districts.  


 


(f)   Receive, file and forward all applications for all procedures governed by this chapter to the 


designated official bodies.  


 







(g)   Investigate all complaints made relating to the location of structures and the use of structures, 


lands, and waters, give notice of all violations of this Code to the owner, resident, agent, or occupant 


of the premises, and report uncorrected violations to the city attorney in a manner specified by him.  


 


(h)   Institute, in the name of the City of Stoughton, any appropriate actions or proceedings against a 


violator of this chapter, as provided by law.  


 


(i)   Prohibit the use or erection of any structure, land or water until he has inspected and approved 


such use or erection.  


 


(j)   Where useful, the zoning administrator, or his agent, may set marks on bridges or buildings  or 


other markers which show the depth of the regional flood; or may set marks delineating the 


boundaries of wetlands.  


 


(k)   Request assistance and cooperation from the city police department and city attorney as deemed 


necessary.  


 


(l)   Make available to the public, to the fullest extent possible, all reports and documents concerning 


the city's comprehensive plan and ordinances. In addition, information in the form of reports, 


bulletins, maps, and engineering data shall be readily available and widely distributed. The common 


council may set fees necessary to recover the cost of providing information to the public.  


 


(m)   The planning and development director may be designated deputy zoning administrator by the 


zoning administrator.  


 


(n)   Make interpretations regarding the provisions of this chapter per section 78-911.  


 


(o)   Grant minor variations from the dimensional (setback, height, and area requirements of this 


chapter; up to a maximum variation of five percent for setbacks and height limitations; and up to a 


maximum variation of five percent or 1,000 square feet for area requirements (whichever is less); so 


long as the spirit and intent of the performance standards are preserved.  


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-911IN





T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2019\1-14-19\Planning info\78-916(2)(o) Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 19, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the January 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting and
Common Council Meetings of January 22 and February 12, 2019.


Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-916(2)(o)
Staff has requested that the language allowing the Zoning Administrator to approve a waiver to
zoning code requirements be eliminated. The Zoning Administrator has never used this section of
code to offer a waiver of requirements and it is not deemed necessary. The proposed ordinance is
provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary.







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Admin Notice 18.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, January 14,
2019 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public
Safety Building, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to
consider a proposed ordinance amendment to the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of
Ordinances section 78-916(2)(o). This proposed amendment is to remove the section
allowing the Zoning Administrator to grant waivers within the City of Stoughton, Dane County,
Wisconsin.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at
608-646-0421


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published November 29, 2018 and December 6, 2018 Hub







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/14/19
Page 2 of 3


Selsor stated the amendment makes sense.


Motion by Selsor to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance amendment as
presented, 2nd by Robinson.


Bartlett stated he checked with Police Chief Leck who stated there have been no complaints
related to chickens. Stacey stated there have been no issues with chickens and he believes there
will be no issues adding 2 more hens.


Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 6-2(b), Keeping of Animals.
Jenson stated this section is redundant and should be removed. Stacey stated the first 2 sentences
could be removed.


Barman stated a reference to the zoning code should be added at the end of the section.


Motion by Jenson to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance with the first 2
sentences removed and a reference to the zoning code section related to the keeping of chickens
added at the end, 2nd by Barman. Motion carried 6 - 0.


8. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-916(2)(o), Zoning Administrator.
Stacey explained there is a variance procedure to request small changes to the zoning
requirements and staff has never given out waivers administratively.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 - 0.


9. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-518, Residential historic design overlay zoning
district.
Stacey explained this section does not have any requirements and refers to a document that was
established in 1998. Also, the Landmarks Commission reviewed this section and recommends
removal or possible amendments.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Jenson.



mstacey

Highlight

Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-916(2)(o), Zoning Administrator.
Stacey explained there is a variance procedure to request small changes to the zoning
requirements and staff has never given out waivers administratively.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.
No one spoke.
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.
Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd
by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 - 0.






		09b-Amending Section 78-916.pdf

		09b-Section 78-916 Zoning Administrator.pdf






 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2019 PACKETS\1-22-19\10a-Repeal Section 78-518.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Repealing Zoning Code Section 78-518 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee Action:    Plan Commission recommends approval 6 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-5-2019 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


January 22, 2019 


February 12, 2019 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Sec. 78-518. - Residential historic design overlay zoning district.  


1)  Purpose. This district is intended to implement the urban design cultural resource 


recommendations of the comprehensive plan, by preserving and enhancing the historical quality 


of Stoughton's historic neighborhoods. As emphasized by said Plan, this district is designed to 


forward aesthetic objectives of the city by controlling the appearance of development within the 


district in a manner which is consistent with historic neighborhood residential design guidelines 


principles as outlined in the “Caring for Historic Houses in Stoughton” guide dated 1998. The 


application of these standards will ensure long-term progress and broad participation toward these 


principles.  


2)  Boundaries. The Northwest Side Historic District, Southwest Side Historic District, East Side 


Historic District, and the East Park Historic District as established by the Stoughton Landmarks 


Commission and as depicted on the official overlay districts zoning map.  


3)  Residential design theme. The residential design theme is generally characterized by a variety 


of architectural styles popular at the time, including Queen Anne, Italianate, Classical Colonial 


Revival, Arts and Crafts Bbungalow, Greek Revival and American Foursquare. These homes have 


generous street-yard, side-yard and rear-yard setbacks, and are well-landscaped with a mixture of 


canopy and understory yard trees, and foundation shrubs and/or flower beds. For illustrative 


purposes, examples of architectural styles which tend to have elements incompatible with 


Downtown historic styles include (with no attempt to be inclusive) Spanish Mission, Scandinavian 


Modern, Bavarian, and California Contemporary.  


4)  Designated historic structures Locally recognized structures, and local districts, and the role of 


the landmarks commission. The landmarks commission is charged with recommending historic 


designations on for locally recognized landmarks, landmark sites, and locally recognized historic 


districts within the city to the city council, as fully described in chapter 38 article II of the 


Municipal Code.  







 


 


The landmarks commission shall have regulatory power for locally-recognized landmarks and 


locally recognized districts; such landmarks are required to obtain a certificate of appropriateness 


to make exterior changes to the property.  


At the request of the property owner, city staff, or the plan commission, the landmarks commission 


shall advise on design components of properties which are not locally-recognized landmarks.  


5)  Residential design guidelines. The residential design guidelines adapted from Caring for 


Historic Homes in Stoughton, a booklet produced by Landscape Research, Ltd. for the 


Commission in 1998, shall only apply as a guide to homes in this district that are. locally-


recognized landmarks.  However, these guidelines can serve as suggestions to other properties in 


this district.  


  


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 
 


 


 


 


 


   


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2019\1-14-19\Planning info\78-518 Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 19, 2018


To: Plan Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the January 14, 2019 Plan Commission Meeting and
Common Council Meetings of January 22 and February 12, 2019.


Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-518.
This section of code is related to the residential design overlay zoning district. The section has no
specific requirements and has many inconsistencies with other codes. The overlay district is
unnecessary. The Landmarks Commission has reviewed and recommended removal of the section
or has offered to assist with an amendment if requested. The proposed ordinance to remove the
section is provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary.







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning 78-518.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, January 14,
2019 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public
Safety Building, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to
consider a proposed ordinance amendment to the City of Stoughton Municipal Code of
Ordinances section 78-518. This proposed amendment is to remove or revise the section
related to a residential historic design overlay zoning district within the City of Stoughton,
Dane County, Wisconsin.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at
608-646-0421


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published December 20, 2018 and December 27, 2018 Hub







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\LANDMARKS\2018\Landmarks Minutes 12-13-18.doc


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes
Thursday December 13, 2018 – 6:30 pm
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Peggy Veregin, Chair; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Greg Pigarelli, Secretary;
Kimberly Cook; Todd Hubing and Kristi Panthofer
Absent: Tom Majewski
Staff: Michael Stacey
Guests: Roger Springman and Emily Bahr


1. Call to order. Veregin called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of November 8, 2018.
Motion by Hubing to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Cook. Motion carried 6 – 0.


3. Discuss status of 1892 High School.
Veregin stated the school district is conducting a survey of their facilities. The 1892 Coalition
recently met to discuss various uses and to revitalize the discussion.


Roger Springman stated there is an op-ed in the Courier Hub that is disparaging to the credibility of
a future use for the 1892 building. The Commission discussed how to respond to the article.
Possible responses from various groups such as the Stoughton Historical Society, Landmarks
Commission, Sustainable Stoughton, and 1892 Coalition were discussed. Veregin plans to draft a
response for review by the Commission.


Hubing stated Mike Connor, a teacher at the High School is seeking to start an engineering
program with the possibility that the 1892 building could house the program. But the focus for Mr.
Connor is to start the program not necessarily seek the 1892 building for such use.


Roger Springman stated a school facilities report came out recently that indicated the River Bluff
School location as the most lacking for future growth which should be a positive for future use of
the 1892 building.


4. Status update for the Power Plant building.
Roger Springman stated Gary Becker is drafting a document to seek “requests for expression of
interest” for specific sites within the development area including the power plant building and
public works facility property. The idea is to seek interest and then narrow the field down to a
couple who would provide a “request for proposal” to develop areas of the development.


The group discussed the timing of listing the power plant in the national and state registry for future
tax credits. It may be best to wait for a developer since the tax credits would help pay for the work
involved to list it.


Future parking and splitting of the property for the power plant was discussed which is believed to
be dependent on the potential future uses.


5. Review and make recommendations for amending section 78-518.
Motion by Cook to recommend the Plan Commission remove this section or revise it, 2nd by
Hubing. The commission would assist with a revision if requested. Motion carried 6 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight

Review and make recommendations for amending section 78-518.
Motion by Cook to recommend the Plan Commission remove this section or revise it, 2nd by
Hubing. The commission would assist with a revision if requested. Motion carried 6 – 0.








Sec. 78-518. - Residential historic design overlay zoning district.


(1) Purpose. This district is intended to implement the urban design recommendations of the
comprehensive plan, by preserving and enhancing the historical quality of Stoughton's historic
neighborhoods. As emphasized by said Plan, this district is designed to forward aesthetic objectives
of the city by controlling the appearance of development within the district in a manner which is
consistent with historic neighborhood design principles. The application of these standards will
ensure long-term progress and broad participation toward these principles.


(2) Boundaries. The Northwest Side Historic District, Southwest Side Historic District, East Side Historic
District, and the East Park Historic District as established by the Stoughton Landmarks Commission
and as depicted on the official zoning map.


(3) Residential design theme. The residential design theme is generally characterized by a variety of
architectural styles popular at the time, including Queen Anne, Italianate, Classical Revival, Arts and
Crafts bungalow, and American Foursquare. These homes have generous street-yard, side-yard and
rear-yard setbacks, and are well-landscaped with a mixture of canopy and understory yard trees, and
foundation shrubs and/or flower beds. For illustrative purposes, examples of architectural styles
which tend to have elements incompatible with Downtown historic styles include (with no attempt to
be inclusive) Spanish Mission, Scandinavian Modern, Bavarian, and California Contemporary.


(4) Designated historic structures and districts and the role of the landmarks commission. The
landmarks commission is charged with recommending historic designation on landmarks, landmark
sites, and historic districts within the city to the city council, as fully described in chapter 38 article II
of the Municipal Code.


The landmarks commission shall have regulatory power for locally-recognized landmarks; such
landmarks are required to obtain a certificate of appropriateness to make changes to the property.


At the request of the property owner, city staff, or the plan commission, the landmarks commission
shall advise on design components of properties which are not locally-recognized landmarks.


(5) Residential design guidelines. The residential design guidelines adapted from Caring for Historic
Homes in Stoughton, a booklet produced by Landscape Research, Ltd. for the Commission in 1998,
shall only apply to homes in this district that are locally-recognized landmarks. However, these
guidelines can serve as suggestions to other properties in this district.


(Ord. No. 0-6-09, 6-23-2009)







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/14/19
Page 2 of 3


Selsor stated the amendment makes sense.


Motion by Selsor to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance amendment as
presented, 2nd by Robinson.


Bartlett stated he checked with Police Chief Leck who stated there have been no complaints
related to chickens. Stacey stated there have been no issues with chickens and he believes there
will be no issues adding 2 more hens.


Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 6-2(b), Keeping of Animals.
Jenson stated this section is redundant and should be removed. Stacey stated the first 2 sentences
could be removed.


Barman stated a reference to the zoning code should be added at the end of the section.


Motion by Jenson to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance with the first 2
sentences removed and a reference to the zoning code section related to the keeping of chickens
added at the end, 2nd by Barman. Motion carried 6 - 0.


8. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-916(2)(o), Zoning Administrator.
Stacey explained there is a variance procedure to request small changes to the zoning
requirements and staff has never given out waivers administratively.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 - 0.


9. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-518, Residential historic design overlay zoning
district.
Stacey explained this section does not have any requirements and refers to a document that was
established in 1998. Also, the Landmarks Commission reviewed this section and recommends
removal or possible amendments.


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.


No one spoke.


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.


Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Jenson.



mstacey

Highlight

Proposed ordinance amendment to section 78-518, Residential historic design overlay zoning
district.
Stacey explained this section does not have any requirements and refers to a document that was
established in 1998. Also, the Landmarks Commission reviewed this section and recommends
removal or possible amendments.
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing.
No one spoke.
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing.
Motion by Barman to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd
by Jenson.








Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/14/19
Page 3 of 3


Bartlett questioned if this section was reference anywhere in the code. Stacey stated he did not
find any references in the code or comprehensive plan.


Motion carried 6 - 0.


10. Proposed amendment to the Planning & Development Fee Schedule.
Stacey explained the proposed changes. Mayor Swadley emphasized the need to make increases
where necessary when the fee does not match the amount of staff time.


Bartlett found an error where a flat fee states a minimum which will be removed from the draft
that goes to Council.


Barman questioned consistency with other communities. Stacey stated we are consistent with
what other communities are charging for fees.


Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the resolution with the one
amendment, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.


11. Proposed ordinance amendment to section 10-34(b), Electrical Contractor License.
Stacey stated due to changes in state statutes many years ago, the City stopped charging electrical
contractors for a local license and the City does not have an electrical examiners board anymore.


Motion by Bartlett to recommend Common Council approval of the ordinance as presented, 2nd


by Jenson. Motion carried 6 - 0.


12. Future agenda items.
Jenson questioned when the bee ordinance would be coming forward. Mayor Swadley stated
Attorney Dregne is starting to get caught up so he will find out what the timetable is.


Mayor Swadley stated State law changes will require some new reporting requirements by 2020
and it will be necessary to make some zoning ordinance changes too.


Kettle Park West Phase 2; Jordan Tilleson project at 193 W. Main Street; Marathon site may have
a project coming; The new owner of the old D and M Station will request a conditional use for an
outdoor display use to sell vehicles.


13. Adjournment. Motion by Jenson to adjourn at 6:30 pm, 2nd by Bartlett. Motion carried 6 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,


Michael P. Stacey


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2019\Planning Minutes 1-14-19.docx



mstacey

Highlight

Bartlett questioned if this section was reference anywhere in the code. Stacey stated he did not
find any references in the code or comprehensive plan.
Motion carried 6 - 0.






		10a-Repeal Section 78-518.pdf

		10b-Section 78-518 Residential Overlay.pdf



